
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
6:30 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 
State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a request 
for economic development assistance. 
 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING November 12, 2018 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. INVOCATION – Pastor Beth Staten, Zion United Church of Christ 

 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Regular Meeting of Council 

held on October 22, 2018, as recorded and transcribed. 
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Work Session of Council held 
on November 5, 2018, as recorded and transcribed. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Planning Commission 

meeting held on October 17, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.  
B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Civil Service 

Commission meeting held on October 3, 2018, as recorded and 
transcribed.  

C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Shade Tree Commission 
meeting held on August 28, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.  

D. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Airport Commission 
meeting held on July 19, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.  

E. Resolution No. 18-60, a resolution authorizing the restriction of on 
street parking on Catherine Street at the new entrance to the 
Boardman Art Park.  

F. Resolution No. 18-61, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
sign an agreement for the Conditional Deed of Gift Ceremonial 



2 
 

Rifles.  
G. Resolution No. 18-62, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 

submit a grant application to the Federal Aviation Administration 
and the Ohio Department of Transportation, and to enter into 
required agreements for the resurfacing of T-hanger pavement.  

H. Establish November 26, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and first reading for Ordinance No. 18-109, an 
ordinance making appropriations for the Year 2019 and declaring 
an emergency.  

I. Establish December 10, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading for Ordinance No. 18-109, an 
ordinance making appropriations for the Year 2019 and declaring 
an emergency.  
 

6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
7. PRESENTATION 

A. Proclamation for Small Business Saturday presented to Holly 
Quaine, President of Delaware Area Chamber of Commerce and 
Susie Bibler, Executive Director of Main Street Delaware  

  
8. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
9. FOURTH READING of Ordinance No. 18-89, an ordinance amending 

Section 917.14 of the Sanitary Sewer Regulations of the Streets, Utilities, 
and Public Services Code to add a fifty percent (50%) surcharge for non-
city customers.   
 

10. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-90, an ordinance finding that the 
creation of the Terra Alta Community Authority will be conducive to the 
public health, safety, convenience and welfare and is intended to result 
in the development of a new community; declaring that authority to be 
organized and a body politic and corporate; defining the boundary of that 
authority’s new community district; providing the method of appointing 
members to that the Authority’s Board of Trustees and fixing the surety 
for those trustee’s bonds.  
 

11. 7:20 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING  of Ordinance No. 
18-91, an ordinance for Simon Kenton Council Boy Scouts of America for 
approval of a Rezoning Amendment for Camp Lazarus from A-1 
(Agricultural District) to A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) encompassing approximately 231 acres and 
located at 4422 Columbus Pike.  
 



3 
 

12. 7:20 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 
18-92, an ordinance for Simon Kenton Council Boy Scouts of America for 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit for Camp Lazarus to allow the 
placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be 
established at 4422 Columbus Pike on approximately 231 acres.  
 

13. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-93, an ordinance for Simon 
Kenton Council Boy Scouts of America for approval of a Preliminary 
Development Plan for Camp Lazarus encompassing approximately 231 
acres zoned A-1 PMU and located at 4422 Columbus Pike.  
 

14. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 
18-94, an ordinance approving a development text amendment to 
Ordinance No. 08-113 for Stavroff Land Development for Belmont Place 
(Sub-Area A) for 102 single family lots and 5 commercial out lots located 
north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn Parkway on approximately 
49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6, and A-1 PMU (Community Business District, 
Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District).  
 

15. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-95, an ordinance approving a 
Preliminary Development Plan for Stavroff Land Development for 
Belmont Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single family lots and 5 commercial 
out lots located north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn Parkway on 
approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6 and A-1 PMU (Community 
Business District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed Used Overlay District).  
 

16. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-96, an ordinance approving a 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat for Stavroff Land Development for Belmont 
Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single family lots and 5 commercial out lots 
located north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn Parkway on 
approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6, and A-1 PMU (Community 
Business District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District).  

 
17. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-97, an ordinance for Tim 

Colatruglio approving a Final Development Plan for River Street Business 
Park encompassing approximately 2.94 acres (13 properties) located at 
45 River Street and zoned B-3 and R-4 PMU (Community Business 
District and Medium Density Residential District with a Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District).  

 
18. 7:45 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 



4 
 

18-98, an ordinance for Tim Colatruglio approving an Alley Vacation for 
River Street Business Park encompassing approximately 2.94 acres (13 
properties) located at 45 River Street and zoned B-3 and R-4 PMU 
(Community Business District and Medium Density Residential District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District).  

 
19. 8:00 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

18-99, an ordinance for Manos Properties for approval of a Conditional 
Use Permit allowing The Wesleyan Inn at 235 West William Street on 
approximately 0.72 acres zoned PO/I (Planned Office/Institutional).  

 
20. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-100, an ordinance for Manos 

Properties for approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the 
Wesleyan Inn at 235 West William Street on approximately 0.72 acres 
zoned PO/I (Planned Office/Institutional).  

 
21. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-102, an ordinance 

supplementing the 2018 Appropriations Ordinance to establish funding 
for the installation of a traffic signal at the intersection of US 23 and 
Glenn Parkway-Peachblow Road, and declaring an emergency.   
 

22. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-104, an ordinance supplementing 
the 2018 Appropriations Ordinance to reallocate appropriations from 
within the finance department budget, and declaring and emergency.   
 

23. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-105, an ordinance approving a 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat request for Makapa LLC., for Belle 
Commons for four single family lots on approximately 1.344 acres on 
property zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the 
north side of Belle Avenue and on the east side of Liberty Road.  
 

24. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-106, an ordinance approving a 
Final Subdivision Plat request by Makapa LLC., for Belle Commons for 
four single family lots on approximately 1.344 acres on property zoned R-
3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the north side of Belle 
Avenue and on the east side of Liberty Road.  
 

25. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-107, an ordinance for Del-Mor 
Dwelling Corporation for approval of a Final Development Plan for an 
actively owned and managed 40 dwelling unit low and moderate income 
affordable housing development at 250 Curtis Street on the north side of 
Firestone Drive on approximately 3.64 acres on property zoned PO/I 
PMU (Planned Office/Institutional District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District).  
 



5 
 

26. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-108, an ordinance for Realco 
Enterprises LLC., approving a Final Development Plan for Raising Cane’s 
encompassing approximately 1.485 acres at 720 Sunbury Road (US 
36/37) on property zone B-3 PMU (Community Business District with a 
Planned Mixed Use Overlay District).  
 

27. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
28. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
29. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 





















































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM E DATE:  11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-60 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Bruce Pijanowski, Police Chief 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE RESTRICTION OF ON STREET PARKING 
ON CATHERINE STREET AT THE NEW ENTRANCE TO THE BOARDMAN ART 
PARK. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Boardman Field has become Boardman Art Park as a result of efforts by the 
Northwest Neighborhood Association.  During the summer of 2018 the 
Boardman Art Park hosted numerous events and displays.  In order to allow for 
entrance to the park that did not require parking restrictions and 
encroachments on private property, a new gate was installed on the fence off of 
Catherine St.  This fence allows for vendors and emergency services to have 
direct access to the occupied area of the park.   
 
There is currently a legal parking space directly in front of the new gate.  A 
request was made to have this space restricted to allow for full use of the gate.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This resolution will allow the new access gate to be used for its intended 
purpose. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Parking and Safety Committee has Approved. 
 



 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
None 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Bruce Pijanowski, Chief of Police 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Overhead view of the impacted parking area. 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-60 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE RESTRICTION OF 
ON STREET PARKING ON CATHERINE STREET AT 
THE NEW ENTRANCE TO THE BOARDMAN ART 
PARK. 
 

WHEREAS, Boardman Art Park has been actively utilized for festivals 
and events; and 

 
WHEREAS, a new entrance to Boardman Art Park was created off of 

Catherine St. to allow exhibitors, vendors and emergency services better access 
to the location.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, STATE OF OHIO: 
 

SECTION 1.  That the on street parking space located in front of the new 
entrance to Boardman Art Park on Catherine St. shall be posted as “No 
Parking.” 

   
SECTION 2.  That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



Boardman Art Park access gate parking restriction request 

 

 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM F DATE:  11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-61 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Bruce Pijanowski, Police Chief 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AN 
AGREEMENT FOR THE CONDITIONAL DEED OF GIFT CEREMONIAL RIFLES. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 The Delaware Police Department maintains an honor guard that is used for 
ceremonial events such as parades, memorials and funerals.  Part of the honor 
guard includes the display of ceremonial rifles.  The rifles that the Delaware 
Police Department maintains were acquired from the Federal Government, 
represented by the U.S. Army TACOM Life Cycle Management Command out of 
Warren Michigan.  These rifles were first acquired in 2011.  The federal 
government has asked for an updated agreement. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This legislation will permit the city manager to sign the current agreement, as 
well as any substantially similar future agreements that will allow the police 
department to maintain possession of the ceremonial firearms.  
  
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
  
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
None.   
 
 



POLICY CHANGES: 
  
PRESENTER(S): 
Bruce Pijanowski, Chief of Police 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Agreement 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-61 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT FOR THE CONDITIONAL 
DEED OF GIFT CEREMONIAL RIFLES. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware Police Department maintains an honor 

guard for use in certain events; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Unites States Army has provided ceremonial rifles for use 

during honor guard events.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 

 SECTION 1.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to sign 
the Conditional Deed of Gift Ceremonial Rifles, as well as any substantially 
similar future M.O.U.’s between the United States Army and the City of 
Delaware Police Department. 

 
SECTION 2.    This resolution shall be effective immediately upon 

its passage. 
   

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 







  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM G  DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:      RESOLUTION NO: 18-62  
 
READING: FIRST      PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SUBMIT A GRANT 
APPLICATION TO THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION AND THE OHIO 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, AND TO ENTER INTO REQUIRED 
AGREEMENTS FOR THE RESURFACING OF T-HANGAR PAVEMENT. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Delaware is requesting $300,000 IN FAA entitlement funding for a 
project that includes the reconstruction of T-hangar pavement between and 
around hangers ‘A’, ‘B’ and ‘C’ at Delaware Municipal Airport.  This amount 
represents 90% of the total estimated project cost based on preliminary design.  
The State and Local match are $16,500 each totaling $33,000.  This project is 
the first of three phases of pavement reconstruction around the three sets of T-
hangars at the airport.  Additional T-hangar paving projects are scheduled for 
2021 and 2023.    
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
FAA requires consent legislation from local jurisdictions requesting Federal 
funding. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   
N/A 
 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S):   
Requires local financial participation of 10% currently estimated to be $33,000.  
 
POLICY CHANGES:   
None 
 
PRESENTER(S):   
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Approval   
 
ATTACHMENT(S)  
Airport Map 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-62 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO SUBMIT A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE 
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION AND THE 
OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, AND TO 
ENTER INTO REQUIRED AGREEMENTS FOR THE 
RESURFACING OF T-HANGAR PAVEMENT. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Delaware is responsible for operating and 
maintaining the Delaware Municipal Airport; and 

 
 WHEREAS, it has been determined that the condition of pavement 

between and around T-hangars A, B & C has fallen below recommended 
minimum pavement conditions and is in need of reconstruction; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City is eligible to apply for and receive Federal Aviation 

Administration Grant funds. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
SECTION 1.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to make 

application for said program and grant in accordance with the procedures 
prescribed by the FAA. 

 
SECTION 2.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into 

necessary agreements associated with the grant and be bound by all terms and 
conditions contained within the application for funding.  
 

SECTION 3. That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 

 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



 

 

NOVEMBER 7, 2018 AIRPORT T-HANGER PAVEMENT REHABILITATION 

INFORMATION AT 
A  GLANCE 

------------- 
 

COST 
$ 333,000 

 
------------- 

FUNDING AVAILABLE 

FAA                   $ 300,000 

STATE                $ 16,500 

LOCAL                $ 16,500 

------------- 
 

PROJECTED SCHEDULE 

Prelim. Design       2018 

Final Design           2019 

Construction          2019,  

------------- 
 

CITY LEAD 
Public Works 

 
DESIGN CONSULTANT 

CHA 
 

CONTRACTOR 
TBD 

------------- 
 
           
 

Purpose 
The latest pavement rating performed by ODOT Dept. of Aviation in 
November 2016 revealed that the pavement between existing T-hangers is 
in poor condition. Originally constructed in 1987, the pavement is over 25 
years old and in need of rehabilitation. 

Financing 
The project is anticipated to cost $333,000 and is the first of three phases 
of pavement improvements to be completed around all nine t-hangar units 
over several years.  This project will be funded through a combination of 
FAA Entitlement Funds, ODOT grant (5%), and with (5%) Local funds.   The 
pavement between the drive aisles and the hangers are non-eligible for 
grant funds as they are defined by the FAA as privately maintained with 
exclusive use by the hanger tenant.  

 

Status 
The project is currently in preliminary phase.  Design will commence in the 
fall pending grant award notification. 

   

 

 

 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  9    DATE: 11/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-89    RESOLUTION NO:   
 
READING: FOURTH    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       October 22, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA: Darren Shulman, City Attorney  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 917.14 OF THE SANITARY SEWER 
REGULATIONS OF THE STREETS, UTILITIES, AND PUBLIC SERVICES CODE 
TO ADD A FIFTY PERCENT (50%) SURCHARGE FOR NON-CITY CUSTOMERS. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
UPDATE 11/12/2018:  
Due to new items of consideration arising during discussions with County staff 
and the need for executive staff/council level discussions regarding providing 
City services outside of incorporated areas, staff recommends tabling this 
ordinance for reconsideration in 2019. 
 
10/22/2018: 
Annexation is a requirement for the City to provide sewer services.  The City 
has been approached by a group of non-residents that request city services 
because the package plant that currently provides sewer services to them is 
failing and the EPA wants to ends its use.  Former Public Utilities Director, 
Brad Stanton, Finance Director, Dean Stelzer, and City Manager R. Thomas 
Homan have been with the homeowners association to find a solution to 
provide sewer services to their area.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
This property will likely never annex into the City.  Therefore, staff recommends 
implementing an out of city surcharge similar to the current charge for water.  



One reason for this amendment is to provide further stability in sewer funding.  
While sewer services are generally covered by sewer fees, in the event of a 
shortfall, general income tax dollars could be used.  Out of city residents do not 
pay taxes, and therefore, they would not contribute income tax dollars to cover 
any cost of providing sewer services beyond sewer fees. In this particular case, 
the sewer infrastructure in the development was not built to city specifications 
and will likely lead to costly maintenance.  As part of the agreement, each lot 
will pay a $1,000 fee to cover upcoming repair and maintenance on the 
sewer.  However, given the permanent nature of sewer service, when these 
funds have been spent, the City will continue to be required to pay for required 
upkeep.  An additional likely side effect of the surcharge will be to provide an 
incentive for those seeking sewer services to annex, which is consistent with 
the City’s current policy. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  
This will collect 50% more revenue for non-city sewer customers.  
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
The City’s general policy is to require annexation as a condition of providing 
sewer services.  This change is being recommended in recognition of the fact 
that these properties will likely never annex into the City.   
 
PRESENTER(S):  
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
Blake Jordan, Public Utilities Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   
None 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-89 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 917.14 OF THE 
SANITARY SEWER REGULATIONS OF THE STREETS, 
UTILITIES, AND PUBLIC SERVICES CODE TO ADD A 
FIFTY PERCENT (50%) SURCHARGE FOR NON-CITY 
CUSTOMERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Delaware Codified Ordinance Section 917.21(c) 
notes that properties outside of the city can be provided sewer service on the 
condition that they annex within sixty days of the property becoming 
contiguous to the City of Delaware; and 
 
 WHEREAS, sewer service has been requested for property that is unlikely 
to ever annex into the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, Delaware Codified Ordinance Sections 913.07 and 913.15 
allow the City to offer water service outside of the city limits but requires an 
additional charge of fifty percent (50%); and 

 
WHEREAS, recognizing the fact that some new connections will not 

annex into the City, Council desires to mirror the out of city water fee structure 
for sewer service. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The Sewerage Service Charges Levied Section is amended as 
follows: 
 
917.14 Sewerage service charges levied.  
 
(b)(9) There shall be added to the schedule of user charge rates set forth 
in Section 917.14(b)(1) a fifty percent (50%) additional charge for all 
sewer service outside the City limits. 

This provision may be waived by the City Manager, with the concurrence 
of City Council, upon a finding of the existence of a specific necessity. 

 
SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 



 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEMS NO:  10    DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-90     RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: THIRD     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
(Public Hearing held pursuant to Ordinance 18-77 on October 8, 2018 at 
7:30 p.m.) 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE FINDING THAT THE CREATION OF THE TERRA ALTA 
COMMUNITY AUTHORITY WILL BE CONDUCIVE TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, 
SAFETY, CONVENIENCE AND WELFARE AND IS INTENDED TO RESULT IN THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW COMMUNITY; DECLARING THAT AUTHORITY TO BE 
ORGANIZED AND A BODY POLITIC AND CORPORATE; DEFINING THE BOUNDARY 
OF THAT AUTHORITY’S NEW COMMUNITY DISTRICT; PROVIDING THE METHOD 
OF APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THAT THE AUTHORITY’S BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
AND FIXING THE SURETY FOR THOSE TRUSTEES’ BONDS.  

BACKGROUND: 
UPDATE:  10/18/2018 
Unfortunately, as of this writing staff has not had a chance to meet with the 
applicant to discuss changes to the petition.  At this point, should council wish 
to proceed with the developer’s recent request to establish the NCA at the 
revised amount of 5.5 mills, the petition would need to be amended to reflect 
this.  In addition, language will need to be included regarding the length of the 
term and appointment to the authority as provided in Section 7.   
 
10/08/2018: 
A New Community Authority (NCA) is a charge put on residents’ property tax 
bill to help pay for infrastructure in the authority area.  The charge is usually 
used as a tool to facilitate future development.   



 
The City has two existing NCAs, which were created to help finance 
infrastructure put in by the City after the formation of the NCA. When the 
infrastructure is paid off, the charges will be removed from the taxes in the 
existing NCAs. 
 
The City has experienced some issues with residents in the current NCAs.  For 
example, the charge is often a source of confusion for residents who do not 
understand what the charge pays for.  Some residents feel the charge is too 
high.  Because it is based on millage (property tax value), owners of new 
houses are often surprised by the charge even though it was disclosed, because 
the tax rate on the auditor’s website is based on the value of the land when it 
was vacant.  Finally, during the levy campaign, residents in the NCA indicated 
they felt their NCA charge should already cover roads and were therefore 
reluctant to approve additional taxes. 
 
These agenda items are being placed together to track the public hearing (set 
by Ord. 18-77 as part of the NCA approval process) with the ordinance it is 
related to.  It is possible this ordinance will change prior to adoption as it is 
being reviewed by bond counsel.  If Council adopts guidelines for approving an 
NCA, a reference to those guidelines would also be added.  Prior to adoption of 
the ordinance, the applicant would need to amend the petition to reflect any 
changes Council may require regarding the amount and length of the NCA 
charge. 
 
A draft set of guidelines for future NCA charges is included in this packet for 
discussion purposes. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Council previously passed legislation declaring the NCA Petition was sufficient.  
The next step is consideration of whether to approve the NCA on policy 
grounds.  The public hearing was set by the prior legislation and this 
legislation is the vehicle for Council to decide to approve or deny the request.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The petition anticipates 2250 new residents will reside in the district at full 
build out. The requested NCA would add a 7.5 mills charge to each parcel of 
property in the district.  This would result in a $.75 charge for each $1,000 of 
assessed valuation, which would appear on the residents’ property tax bill. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
The present request being brought forward by the developer differs from our 
existing NCAs in the following ways. First, it would reimburse the developer as 
opposed to the City.  Second, the developer has indicated that it is intended to 



help finance amenities, but the majority of the items the developer would be 
reimbursed for through the charge are infrastructure items that traditionally 
are a developer’s responsibility to install. Third, part of the charge would go 
towards reimbursing the developer for infrastructure that has already been 
built, which does not fit with the City’s prior use of an NCA to finance future 
development.  Finally, the proposed NCA has no set end date. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff is concerned that by adding a significant cost to the property tax bill of 
2250 new residents of the city, it will make it more difficult for city and school 
levies to pass.  In addition, based on the volume of calls generated by the 
existing NCAs, staff anticipates additional staff time will be required to help 
these new residents understand the charge.  Finally, staff believes approving 
this NCA will set a precedent for future NCA requests.  To the extent these 
expenses are related to amenities, they could be financed by a homeowners 
association (HOA) charge, which would make it clear what the charge is paying 
for and eliminate any confusion over perceived increased taxes.   
 
Since the filing of the petition, the developer has submitted a letter indicating 
they would accept a reduction to a 5.5 mill charge. Staff will present 
recommendations regarding the charge amount and term at the meeting.  The 
developer would have to amend the petition to effectuate any change. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Draft NCA Guidelines 
Petition 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEMS NO:  10    DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-90     RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: THIRD     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
(Public Hearing held pursuant to Ordinance 18-77 on October 8, 2018 at 
7:30 p.m.) 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE FINDING THAT THE CREATION OF THE TERRA ALTA 
COMMUNITY AUTHORITY WILL BE CONDUCIVE TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, 
SAFETY, CONVENIENCE AND WELFARE AND IS INTENDED TO RESULT IN 
THE DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW COMMUNITY; DECLARING THAT AUTHORITY 
TO BE ORGANIZED AND A BODY POLITIC AND CORPORATE; DEFINING THE 
BOUNDARY OF THAT AUTHORITY’S NEW COMMUNITY DISTRICT; 
PROVIDING THE METHOD OF APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THAT THE 
AUTHORITY’S BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND FIXING THE SURETY FOR THOSE 
TRUSTEES’ BONDS.  

BACKGROUND: 
 
UPDATE 11/8/2018: 
Staff has completed its analysis of the developer’s NCA request and makes the 
following recommendation.  Should Council be inclined to approve an NCA for 
this project, staff recommends the amount be set at 4 mills, with .5 mills being 
directed to the City to fund access to the river. This would leave 3.5 mills, 
which according to materials provided by the developer, would provide between 
$3 and $3.5 million in capital financing to help fund an agreed upon list of 
improvements.  By way of comparison, the current petition requests 7.5 mills, 
and the developer has since proposed 5.5 mills based on feedback provided by 
staff and Council. 



Staff would also recommend including language in the petition indicating the 
charge would be substantially reduced (absent action by the homeowners) once 
that list of improvements has been paid for.   
 
UPDATE:  10/18/2018 
Unfortunately, as of this writing staff has not had a chance to meet with the 
applicant to discuss changes to the petition.  At this point, should council wish 
to proceed with the developer’s recent request to establish the NCA at the 
revised amount of 5.5 mills, the petition would need to be amended to reflect 
this.  In addition, language will need to be included regarding the length of the 
term and appointment to the authority as provided in Section 7.   
 
10/08/2018: 
A New Community Authority (NCA) is a charge put on residents’ property tax 
bill to help pay for infrastructure in the authority area.  The charge is usually 
used as a tool to facilitate future development.   
 
The City has two existing NCAs, which were created to help finance 
infrastructure put in by the City after the formation of the NCA. When the 
infrastructure is paid off, the charges will be removed from the taxes in the 
existing NCAs. 
 
The City has experienced some issues with residents in the current NCAs.  For 
example, the charge is often a source of confusion for residents who do not 
understand what the charge pays for.  Some residents feel the charge is too 
high.  Because it is based on millage (property tax value), owners of new 
houses are often surprised by the charge even though it was disclosed, because 
the tax rate on the auditor’s website is based on the value of the land when it 
was vacant.  Finally, during the levy campaign, residents in the NCA indicated 
they felt their NCA charge should already cover roads and were therefore 
reluctant to approve additional taxes. 
 
These agenda items are being placed together to track the public hearing (set 
by Ord. 18-77 as part of the NCA approval process) with the ordinance it is 
related to.  It is possible this ordinance will change prior to adoption as it is 
being reviewed by bond counsel.  If Council adopts guidelines for approving an 
NCA, a reference to those guidelines would also be added.  Prior to adoption of 
the ordinance, the applicant would need to amend the petition to reflect any 
changes Council may require regarding the amount and length of the NCA 
charge. 
 
A draft set of guidelines for future NCA charges is included in this packet for 
discussion purposes. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 



Council previously passed legislation declaring the NCA Petition was sufficient.  
The next step is consideration of whether to approve the NCA on policy 
grounds.  The public hearing was set by the prior legislation and this 
legislation is the vehicle for Council to decide to approve or deny the request.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The petition anticipates 2250 new residents will reside in the district at full 
build out. The requested NCA would add a 7.5 mills charge to each parcel of 
property in the district.  This would result in a $.75 charge for each $1,000 of 
assessed valuation, which would appear on the residents’ property tax bill. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
The present request being brought forward by the developer differs from our 
existing NCAs in the following ways. First, it would reimburse the developer as 
opposed to the City.  Second, the developer has indicated that it is intended to 
help finance amenities, but the majority of the items the developer would be 
reimbursed for through the charge are infrastructure items that traditionally 
are a developer’s responsibility to install. Third, part of the charge would go 
towards reimbursing the developer for infrastructure that has already been 
built, which does not fit with the City’s prior use of an NCA to finance future 
development.  Finally, the proposed NCA has no set end date. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff is concerned that by adding a significant cost to the property tax bill of 
2250 new residents of the city, it will make it more difficult for city and school 
levies to pass.  In addition, based on the volume of calls generated by the 
existing NCAs, staff anticipates additional staff time will be required to help 
these new residents understand the charge.  Finally, staff believes approving 
this NCA will set a precedent for future NCA requests.  To the extent these 
expenses are related to amenities, they could be financed by a homeowners 
association (HOA) charge, which would make it clear what the charge is paying 
for and eliminate any confusion over perceived increased taxes.   
 
Since the filing of the petition, the developer has submitted a letter indicating 
they would accept a reduction to a 5.5 mill charge. Staff will present 
recommendations regarding the charge amount and term at the meeting.  The 
developer would have to amend the petition to effectuate any change. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Email from Applicant containing 4 versions of cost analysis 
Draft NCA Guidelines 



Petition 
 















 

Draft NCA Guidelines 

* NCA can be used to reimburse the city for infrastructure put in that benefits the development 

* NCA will not be approved to reimburse for building cost of items already built/installed 

* NCA will not be approved to reimburse for the cost of items typically required to be paid by developer, 
including but not limited to on-site local roads and utility lines.  

* The City will consider approving NCAs to cover amenities and infrastructure which have demonstrable 
utility above and beyond that which is required for the development as determined by the City 
Engineer.  Amenities and infrastructure must have a recognizable direct value to the residents living in 
the authority or major pieces of public infrastructure that have utility for more than just the 
development as determined by the City Engineer (such as Glenn Parkway) .   

* Length of time: City prefers NCAs with a time limit that has the effect of eliminating the additional 
charge or converting a home owner association charge to the same or lower total charge.  The purpose 
is to allow an HOA to be converted to an NCA which produces tax benefits for purposes of holding land 
while not increasing (and hopefully decreasing) the previous HOA fee.  

* The City may approve new community authorities containing a minimum of 200 total gross acres. 

* The city prefers NCA millage to be 5 mills or less but which shall be under no circumstance greater 
than 7.5 mills. 

* The city requires disclosure to potential renters, property owners, and other effected parties of the 
NCA charge.  This can be recorded separately upon the property and deed or as otherwise required in 
the sole discretion and direction of the city. 

























































































































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 11/122/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-91    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       November 12, 2018 at 7:20 p.m.  
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR SIMON KENTON COUNCIL BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 
FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR CAMP LAZARUS FROM 
A-1 (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT) TO A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 
WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) ENCOMPASSING 
APPROXIMATELY 231 ACRES AND LOCATED AT 4422 COLUMBUS PIKE.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on October 17, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-91 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR SIMON KENTON COUNCIL BOY 
SCOUTS OF AMERICA FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING 
AMENDMENT FOR CAMP LAZARUS FROM A-1 
(AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT) TO A-1 PMU 
(AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) ENCOMPASSING 
APPROXIMATELY 231 ACRES AND LOCATED AT 4422 
COLUMBUS PIKE.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment for Simon Kenton Council Boy 
Scouts of America for  Camp Lazarus from A-1 (Agricultural District) to A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) encompassing 
approximately 231 acres and located at 4422 Columbus Pike (PC Case 2018-
2385).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Rezoning Amendment for Simon Kenton Council Boy 
Scouts of America for  Camp Lazarus from A-1 (Agricultural District) to A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) encompassing 
approximately 231 acres and located at 4422 Columbus Pike, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following condition that: 
 
1) Any future changes shall require conformance to all provision of the 

Development Text. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-92    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       November 12, 2018 at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR SIMON KENTON COUNCIL BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 
FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR CAMP LAZARUS TO 
ALLOW THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED AT 4422 COLUMBUS PIKE ON 
APPROXIMATELY 231 ACRES.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on October 17, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-92 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR SIMON KENTON COUNCIL BOY 
SCOUTS OF AMERICA FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR CAMP LAZARUS TO 
ALLOW THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED AT 4422 
COLUMBUS PIKE ON APPROXIMATELY 231 ACRES. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit for Simon Kenton Council Boy 
Scouts of America for  Camp Lazarus to allow the placement of a PMU (Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established at 4422 Columbus Pike on 
approximately 231 acres (PC Case 2018-2387).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit for Simon Kenton Council Boy 
Scouts of America for  Camp Lazarus to allow the placement of a PMU (Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established at 4422 Columbus Pike on 
approximately 231 acres, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-93    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR SIMON KENTON COUNCIL BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 
FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR CAMP 
LAZARUS ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 231 ACRES ZONED A-1 PMU 
AND LOCATED AT 4422 COLUMBUS PIKE.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on October 17, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 



David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-93 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR SIMON KENTON COUNCIL BOY 
SCOUTS OF AMERICA FOR APPROVAL OF A 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR CAMP 
LAZARUS ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 231 
ACRES ZONED A-1 PMU AND LOCATED AT 4422 
COLUMBUS PIKE.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for Simon Kenton 
Council Boy Scouts of America for Camp Lazarus encompassing approximately 
231 acres zoned A-1 PMU and located at 4422 Columbus Pike (PC Case 2018-
2386).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Development Plan  for Simon Kenton 
Council Boy Scouts of America for Camp Lazarus  encompassing approximately 
231 acres zoned A-1 PMU and located at 4422 Columbus Pike, is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 
1) Any new or existing road(s) to be constructed and/or widened within the 

development shall comply with the development text. 
2) Any new or existing utilities to be constructed and/or extended within the 

development shall comply with the City minimum requirements or as approved 
by the City Director of Utilities.  

3) Any new building shall achieve compliance with the design standards of the 
approved development text. 

4) Any new signage shall achieve compliance with approved development text. 
5) Any lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building Official 

and achieve compliance with approved development text 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 









































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-94    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       November 12, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT TEXT AMENDMENT TO 
ORDINANCE 08-113 FOR STAVROFF LAND DEVELOPMENT FOR BELMONT 
PLACE (SUB-AREA A) FOR 102 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND 5 COMMERCIAL 
OUT LOTS LOCATED NORTH OF PEACHBLOW ROAD AND EAST OF GLENN 
PARKWAY ON APPROXIMATELY 49.6 ACRES ZONED C-3, R-6 AND A-1 PMU 
(COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT, MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 
AND AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on October 17, 
2018.  
 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-94 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT TEXT 
AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE 08-113 FOR STAVROFF 
LAND DEVELOPMENT FOR BELMONT PLACE (SUB-
AREA A) FOR 102 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND 5 
COMMERCIAL OUT LOTS LOCATED NORTH OF 
PEACHBLOW ROAD AND EAST OF GLENN PARKWAY 
ON APPROXIMATELY 49.6 ACRES ZONED C-3, R-6 AND 
A-1 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT, MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT).  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Development Text Amendment to Ordinance 08-113 
for Stavroff Land Development for Belmont Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single 
family lots and 5 commercial out lots located north of Peachblow Road and east of 
Glenn Parkway on approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6 and A-1 PMU 
(Community Business District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) (PC 2018-2459).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Development Text Amendment to Ordinance 08-113 
for Stavroff Land Development Belmont Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single family 
lots and 5 commercial out lots located north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn 
Parkway on approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6 and A-1 PMU (Community 
Business District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural District with 
a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby confirmed, approved, and 
accepted with the following condition that: 
 

1. Any change of land use and/or bulk and setback requirements shall 
require conformance to all provisions of the Development Text and any 
conditions of approval. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 



 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 15    DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-95    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
STAVROFF LAND DEVELOPMENT FOR BELMONT PLACE (SUB-AREA A) FOR 
102 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND 5 COMMERCIAL OUT LOTS LOCATED NORTH 
OF PEACHBLOW ROAD AND EAST OF GLENN PARKWAY ON 
APPROXIMATELY 49.6 ACRES ZONED C-3, R-6 AND A-1 PMU (COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT, MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on October 17, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-95 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR STAVROFF LAND 
DEVELOPMENT FOR BELMONT PLACE (SUB-AREA A) 
FOR 102 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND 5 COMMERCIAL 
OUT LOTS LOCATED NORTH OF PEACHBLOW ROAD 
AND EAST OF GLENN PARKWAY ON APPROXIMATELY 
49.6 ACRES ZONED C-3, R-6 AND A-1 PMU 
(COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT, MULTI-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT).  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for Stavroff Land 
Development for Belmont Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single family lots and 5 
commercial out lots located north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn Parkway 
on approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6 and A-1 PMU (Community Business 
District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) (PC 2018-2460).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Development Plan for Stavroff Land 
Development for Belmont Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single family lots and 5 
commercial out lots located north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn Parkway 
on approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6 and A-1 PMU (Community Business 
District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. The private street located east of the commercial out lots shall be 
constructed to public standards. 

3. The off-site stormwater improvements shall comply with the minimum 
City and County regulations. 



4. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 
requirements in the approved development text. 

5. The proposed detention ponds shall achieve compliance with the 
minimum engineering requirements. 

6. The single family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 
standards in the approved development text and per applicable sections 
of the current zoning code. 

7. The commercial buildings on the out lots shall achieve compliance with 
the development text and applicable sections of the current zoning code. 

8. In Reserve B, the developer shall construct overlapped continuous 4 to 6 
foot high mounds with landscaping providing a buffer adjacent to the 
commercial out lots to the west and shall construct an intermittent 4-6 
high mound with landscaping and an intermittent three rail fence along 
Peachblow Road to the south per the submitted plan. 

9. All evergreen trees shall be a minimum 6 foot high at installation and the 
deciduous trees shall be a minimum 1.75 inch caliper. The maintenance 
of the reserve areas and the mounding and associated landscaping shall 
be the responsibility of the Homeowners Association 

10. Any landscape plans shall be submitted and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

11. Any tree removal and/or replacement requirements shall achieve 
compliance with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations and shall 
be required prior to Final Subdivision Plat approvals for each section of 
the residential development and prior to the Final Development Plan 
approval for each commercial out lot. 

12. The proposed bike path shall be extend west to Glenn Parkway along 
Peachblow Road (through commercial out lot 4) and shall be extended 
north and west through Reserve A to Glenn Parkway to connect to the 
City bike path network.  In addition, the bike path shall be extended 
from Section 1 of Belmont Place Subdivision from the current terminus 
at McNamara Loop across Crownover Way along the northern portion of 
Reserve B (in place of a sidewalk in this area) to the proposed bike path 
location on the submitted plans. 

13. All lighting plans shall achieve compliance with the approved 
development text and current zoning code and be approved by the Chief 
Building Office during the Final Subdivision Plat process for the 
residential development and Final Development Plan process for the 
commercial out lots. 

14. The entrance ground sign for Belmont Place Subdivision along Glenn 
Parkway shall have a Delaware blue vein limestone base or equivalent as 
approved by staff. 

15. Any signage for the commercial out lots shall achieve compliance with 
the approved development text and current zoning code.  



16. The existing vacant single family houses on commercial out lot 5 shall be 
demolished prior to building permit approval for any residential or 
commercial building within Sub-Area A.  

17. These sections of the Belmont Place Subdivision shall be placed in the 
Delaware South New Community Authority prior to issuance of building 
permits, is located within the Evans Residential TIF district, is located 
within the Southern Point Commercial TIF District and is subject to the 
South East Highland Sanitary Sewer additional capacity charge of 
$3,200 per dwelling unit. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-96    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR 
STAVROFF LAND DEVELOPMENT FOR BELMONT PLACE (SUB-AREA A) FOR 
102 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND 5 COMMERCIAL OUT LOTS LOCATED NORTH 
OF PEACHBLOW ROAD AND EAST OF GLENN PARKWAY ON 
APPROXIMATELY 49.6 ACRES ZONED C-3, R-6 AND A-1 PMU (COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT, MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on October 17, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 



  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-96 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY 
SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR STAVROFF LAND 
DEVELOPMENT FOR BELMONT PLACE (SUB-AREA A) 
FOR 102 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND 5 COMMERCIAL 
OUT LOTS LOCATED NORTH OF PEACHBLOW ROAD 
AND EAST OF GLENN PARKWAY ON APPROXIMATELY 
49.6 ACRES ZONED C-3, R-6 AND A-1 PMU 
(COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT, MULTI-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT).  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Subdivision Plat for Stavroff Land 
Development for Belmont Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single family lots and 5 
commercial out lots located north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn Parkway 
on approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6 and A-1 PMU (Community Business 
District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) (PC 2018-2461).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Subdivision Plat for Stavroff Land 
Development for Belmont Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single family lots and 5 
commercial out lots located north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn Parkway 
on approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6 and A-1 PMU (Community Business 
District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. The private street located east of the commercial out lots shall be 
constructed to public standards. 

3. The off-site stormwater improvements shall comply with the minimum 
City and County regulations. 



4. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 
requirements in the approved development text. 

5. The proposed detention ponds shall achieve compliance with the 
minimum engineering requirements. 

6. The single family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 
standards in the approved development text and per applicable sections 
of the current zoning code. 

7. The commercial buildings on the out lots shall achieve compliance with 
the development text and applicable sections of the current zoning code. 

8. In Reserve B, the developer shall construct overlapped continuous 4 to 6 
foot high mounds with landscaping providing a buffer adjacent to the 
commercial out lots to the west and shall construct an intermittent 4-6 
high mound with landscaping and an intermittent three rail fence along 
Peachblow Road to the south per the submitted plan. 

9. All evergreen trees shall be a minimum 6 foot high at installation and the 
deciduous trees shall be a minimum 1.75 inch caliper. The maintenance 
of the reserve areas and the mounding and associated landscaping shall 
be the responsibility of the Homeowners Association 

10. Any landscape plans shall be submitted and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

11. Any tree removal and/or replacement requirements shall achieve 
compliance with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations and shall 
be required prior to Final Subdivision Plat approvals for each section of 
the residential development and prior to the Final Development Plan 
approval for each commercial out lot. 

12. The proposed bike path shall be extend west to Glenn Parkway along 
Peachblow Road (through commercial out lot 4) and shall be extended 
north and west through Reserve A to Glenn Parkway to connect to the 
City bike path network.  In addition, the bike path shall be extended 
from Section 1 of Belmont Place Subdivision from the current terminus 
at McNamara Loop across Crownover Way along the northern portion of 
Reserve B (in place of a sidewalk in this area) to the proposed bike path 
location on the submitted plans. 

13. All lighting plans shall achieve compliance with the approved 
development text and current zoning code and be approved by the Chief 
Building Office during the Final Subdivision Plat process for the 
residential development and Final Development Plan process for the 
commercial out lots. 

14. The entrance ground sign for Belmont Place Subdivision along Glenn 
Parkway shall have a Delaware blue vein limestone base or equivalent as 
approved by staff. 

15. Any signage for the commercial out lots shall achieve compliance with 
the approved development text and current zoning code.  



16. The existing vacant single family houses on commercial out lot 5 shall be 
demolished prior to building permit approval for any residential or 
commercial building within Sub-Area A.  

17. These sections of the Belmont Place Subdivision shall be placed in the 
Delaware South New Community Authority prior to issuance of building 
permits, is located within the Evans Residential TIF district, is located 
within the Southern Point Commercial TIF District and is subject to the 
South East Highland Sanitary Sewer additional capacity charge of 
$3,200 per dwelling unit. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

























































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  17     DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-97    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO APPROVING A FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS PARK ENCOMPASSING 
APPROXIMATELY 2.94 ACRES (13 PROPERTIES) LOCATED AT 45 RIVER 
STREET AND ZONED B-3 AND R-4 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT 
AND MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan   
requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on October 17, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-97 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO APPROVING A 
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR RIVER STREET 
BUSINESS PARK ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 
2.94 ACRES (13 PROPERTIES) LOCATED AT 45 RIVER 
STREET AND ZONED B-3 AND R-4 PMU (COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT AND MEDIUM DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT).  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Development Plan for Tim Colatruglio for River 
Street Business Park encompassing approximately 2.94 acres (13 properties) 
located at 45 River Street and zoned B-3 and R-4 PMU (Community Business 
District and Medium Density Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) (PC Case 2018-2493).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Development Plan for Tim Colatruglio for River 
Street Business Park encompassing approximately 2.94 acres (13 properties) 
located at 45 River Street and zoned B-3 and R-4 PMU (Community Business 
District and Medium Density Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District)is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following 
conditions that: 

 
1. The applicant has submitted engineering drawings for the site that shall be 

approved when the Final Development Plan is approved. 
2. There shall be a minimum of 60 parking spaces to accommodate the mix of 

commercial, office and warehouse land uses. 
3. A guard rail on the west side of River Street adjacent to the curbs cuts shall 

be installed per engineering requirements for safety reasons. 
4. A sidewalk on the east side of River Street along the frontage of the 

development to the southern curb cut shall be installed per engineering 
requirements. 

5. The existing building and the new buildings shall achieve compliance with 
the design standards of the approved development text or as approved per 
the Final Development Plan. 



6. Six foot high evergreen trees at installation shall be planted 20 feet on 
center to supplement the existing trees to form a continuous buffer shall 
adjacent to the residential houses to the north. 

7. Foundation landscaping shall be required for each building. 
8. The owner shall be required to replant, permanently preserve treed area 

and/or pay a tree replacement fee preliminary calculated of $19,200 per the 
submitted tree survey to achieve compliance with Chapter 1168 Tree 
Preservation Regulations along with the approved development text. 

9. Any landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

10. The lighting plan was approved by the Chief Building Official on March 14, 
2018. In lieu of street lights, site lighting is being provided such that 
appropriate illumination of River Street is provided 

11. The thirteen parcels shall be consolidated after the Alley Vacation and Final 
Development Plan approval but prior to the occupancy permit of the first 
new building. 

12. The applicant shall grant a temporary easement to allow the alley to the 
north to be located on the owner’s property until the alley is paved within 
its right-of-way by the City.   

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  18    DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-98    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       November 12, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO APPROVING AN ALLEY VACATION 
FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS PARK ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 2.94 
ACRES (13 PROPERTIES) LOCATED AT 45 RIVER STREET AND ZONED B-3 
AND R-4 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT AND MEDIUM DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 910 Street and Alley Vacations of the 
codified ordinances.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on October 17, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 



David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-98 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO APPROVING 
AN ALLEY VACATION FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS 
PARK ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 2.94 ACRES 
(13 PROPERTIES) LOCATED AT 45 RIVER STREET AND 
ZONED B-3 AND R-4 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS 
DISTRICT AND MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of an Alley Vacation for Tim Colatruglio for River Street 
Business Park encompassing approximately 2.94 acres (13 properties) located at 
45 River Street and zoned B-3 and R-4 PMU (Community Business District and 
Medium Density Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) 
(PC Case 2018-2494).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Alley Vacation for Tim Colatruglio for River Street 
Business Park encompassing approximately 2.94 acres (13 properties) located at 
45 River Street and zoned B-3 and R-4 PMU (Community Business District and 
Medium Density Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District)is 
hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following condition that: 
 
1. The owner shall record the alley vacation plat at the county recorder’s office. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  19    DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-99    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       November 12, 2018 at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE WESLEYAN INN AT 235 WEST 
WILLIAM STREET ON APPROXIMATELY 0.72 ACRES ZONED PO/I (PLANNED 
OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-1 on October 17, 
2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-99 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
ALLOWING THE WESLEYAN INN AT 235 WEST WILLIAM 
STREET ON APPROXIMATELY 0.72 ACRES ZONED PO/I 
(PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL).  
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing The Wesleyan Inn at 
235 West William Street on approximately 0.72 acres zoned PO/I (Planned 
Office/Institutional) (2018-2462). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit allowing The Wesleyan Inn at 
235 West William Street on approximately 0.72 acres zoned PO/I (Planned 
Office/Institutional), is hereby confirmed, approved and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
 

1. The subject building shall be only used as an Inn and shall not exceed 43 
rooms. 

2. The building and site shall be developed per the any approved Preliminary 
and Final Development Plan conditions. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  20     DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-100   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR APPROVAL OF A 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE WESLEYAN INN AT 235 WEST 
WILLIAM STREET ON APPROXIMATELY 0.72 ACRES ZONED PO/I (PLANNED 
OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL).   
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-1 on October 17, 
2018. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-100 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
FOR THE WESLEYAN INN AT 235 WEST WILLIAM 
STREET ON APPROXIMATELY 0.72 ACRES ZONED PO/I 
(PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL).   
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for The Wesleyan Inn 
at 235 West William Street on approximately 0.72 acres zoned PO/I (Planned 
Office/Institutional) (2018-2462). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Development Plan for The Wesleyan Inn 
at 235 West William Street on approximately 0.72 acres zoned PO/I (Planned 
Office/Institutional), is hereby confirmed, approved and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 
water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a complete 
plan set is submitted for review. 

2. The ingress to the site at the easternmost curb cut shall include a two-way 
left turn lane on West William Street, west of the existing dedicated left turn 
lane to Elizabeth Street, in order to separate left turning vehicles on West 
William Street from westbound through traffic. The two-way left turn lane 
shall be designed in accordance with City standards and shall be approved 
by the City Engineer with all required roadway widening being on the south 
side of the street and not impacting parking on the north side of the street. 
All necessary associated improvements including, but not limited to, 
sidewalk and utility pole relocations shall be made by the developer. 

3. Because no public storm sewer exists adjacent to the site, a storm sewer 
extension shall be required to be designed and constructed by the 
developer.  Design of the storm sewer and any associated roadway 
restoration shall need to be approved by the Public Works Department and 
Public Utilities Department.   



4. An emergency access point shall be required on the southeastern portion of 
the site adjacent to the Ohio Wesleyan parking lot that is accessed off Oak 
Hill Avenue. An executed agreement by the subject property owner and Ohio 
Wesleyan University shall be recorded at the County prior to final 
occupancy. The exact type of connection and barrier shall be determined 
during the Final Development Plan approval process. 

5. The cantilevered building shall achieve compliance with the minimum Fire 
Department clearance requirements. 

6. Any mechanical equipment shall be screened from public view. 
7. The number of hotel rooms shall not exceed 43 rooms. 

8. The number of required parking spaces shall be 45 or in accordance with 
the approved Final Development Plan. Plan. 

9. The proposed hotel building shall achieve compliance with the City design 
standards per the Final Development Plan as approved by staff.  

10. Any exposed portion of a retaining wall(s) shall be faced with Delaware 
blue vein limestone or equivalent as approved by staff. 

11. The applicant shall have to replace the removed trees with the same total 
caliper inches of trees or make a payment in lieu of replacement of $20,300 
($100 per caliper inch x 203 caliper inches)  or a combination of both to 
achieve compliance with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations prior 
to construction drawing approval.  

12. Any street trees or other on-site trees damaged by construction shall be 
replaced. 

13. A six foot high solid wood fence shall be located along the southern 
property line of the subject site and the western property line of 239 West 
William Street to screen the adjacent uses. The landscaping shall be on the 
adjacent residential side of the fence along the west and south property 
lines 

14. Any landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

15. A lighting plan shall be documented in the Final Development Plan that 
achieves compliance with the minimum zoning requirements and shall be 
reviewed and approved by the Chief Building Official. 

16. Any signage shall be documented on the Final Development Plan and shall 
achieve compliance with the approved development text and the adopted 
Gateways and Corridor Plan. 

17. The entire development shall achieve compliance with the minimum 
engineering, public works and fire department requirements.  
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 



this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  21    DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-102   RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO ESTABLISH FUNDING FOR THE INSTALLATION OF A TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT 
THE INTERSECTION OF US 23 AND GLENN PARKWAY-PEACHBLOW ROAD 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
11/12/2018 UPDATE: 
The project has been successfully bid and the apparent low bid is just under 
$136,000.  A moderate amount of contingency dollars must be kept in the 
project budget.  The supplemental appropriation could be lowered to 
$156,000.  Delaware County is contributing $50,000.  Therefore, the City of 
Delaware and the Delaware Area Career Center should each expect to spend 
$53,000 on this project.   
 
10/22/2018: 
In 2010, the City re-aligned Peachblow Road and Winter Road at US 23 and 
introduced the intersection of Glenn Parkway and US 23.  Technically, Glenn 
Parkway is also Peachblow Road at the intersection with US 23.  The project 
was built with State and Federal dollars in partnership with ODOT, and it 
established a new southern gateway into the City of Delaware.  The intersection 
was built immediately outside of the City limits, however, it was critical for the 
City to remain in control of the alignment of Glenn Parkway, hence the reason 
the City took the lead position on the project.  The design for the 2010 project 



did account for the future installation of a mast arm signal at the new 23 & 
Glenn Parkway intersection.  However, there was not enough side street traffic 
in 2010 to warrant the signal being installed.  Therefore, only underground 
conduits were installed for the future signal.  The warrant for a signal was re-
visited in 2017 and now it is time to finish the design and installation of the 
signal.  The Public Works Department has identified partners – ODOT, 
Delaware County - to assist in designing and constructing this signal in time 
for the expanded Delaware Area Career Center (DACC) campus opening in 
August of 2019.  The following is an outline of how the collaborative effort will 
unfold: 
 

• ODOT will provide design plans for the completion of the mast-arm 
installation early this month 

• City will bid the project in October of 2018 and oversee construction: 
o Foundations will  be installed before Winter 2018 
o Mast-arms will be manufactured and painted during the Winter of 

2018 
o Signal will be erected in the Spring of 2019; 

• ODOT to provide (lightly) used traffic signal equipment in order to reduce 
the overall cost of the project by an estimated $50,000; 

• Delaware County to contribute $50,000 towards the project pending a 
Cooperation Agreement being approved; 

• ODOT to issue a permit to construct based on traffic analysis already in 
place; 

• ODOT will own/maintain the signal after construction.  If the 
intersection is annexed into the City in the future, this arrangement may 
change. 

 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This project was not included in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan, nor the 
2018 Budget. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
A conservative preliminary estimate for the items to be bid out to the 
contracting community is $200,000, which would result in a City obligation of 
$150,000 considering a Delaware County contribution of $50,000.  The City 
has received a commitment from DACC to split this $150,000 cost.  City costs 
are anticipated to be funded by the Southern New Community Authority.  
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 



William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at 2nd Reading 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-102 
 
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO ESTABLISH 
FUNDING FOR THE INSTALLATION OF A TRAFFIC 
SIGNAL AT THE INTERSECTION OF US 23 AND 
GLENN PARKWAY-PEACHBLOW ROAD AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.     

 
WHEREAS, in 2010, the City constructed the intersection of US 23 and 

Glenn Parkway-Peachblow Road, establishing a new southern gateway to the 
City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2010 project included components of a mast-arm traffic 

signal installation along US 23 knowing the signal would eventually be 
warranted; and  

 
WHEREAS, the mast-arm traffic signal is now warranted pending the 

opening of the expanded Delaware Area Career Center; and   
 
WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation is required to provide the 

funding necessary to install a mast-arm traffic signal.   
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Glenn Road South Construction Fund $200,000.00 increasing 
the following account: 

 
496-4960-5551   Glenn Road South Construction Fund 
 

SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  

 
SECTION 3.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 

declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public 
peace, safety, health and welfare of the City and for the further reason to 
provide for the timely start of the traffic signal safety improvement, and as 
such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 



 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 

 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  22    DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-104   RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO REALLOCATE APPROPRIATIONS FROM THE WITHIN THE FINANCE 
DEPARTMENT BUDGET, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
We have gone through 3 full-time staff transitions in the Income Tax Division in 
the last year.  We have finally filled all the vacancies.  In order to get caught up 
with the backlog of tax work due to the transitions we have secured the services 
of contract staffing from Account Temps.  This ordinance would appropriate 
funds to pay for the contracted services.  To offset the amount of the 
supplemental, a like reduction in the appropriation for wages will be made.    
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To reduce backlog of work in the tax department. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):   
$0.00 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-104 
 

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO REALLOCATE 
APPROPRIATIONS FROM WITHIN THE FINANCE 
DEPARTMENT BUDGET, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, in 2018 the Finance Department has transitioned five staff 

positions in the department; and  
 
WHEREAS, several positions have been vacant for extended periods of 

time; and 
 
WHEREAS, to compensate for staffing shortages arrangements have been 

made for contracted services to facilitate various tasks necessary to keep pace 
with work demands; and 

 
 WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation will be necessary to amend the 

adopted 2018 budget to accommodate the shift in staffing source by increasing 
contracted services and reducing wages and benefits. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the General Fund $9,000 increasing the following accounts: 

 
Finance Department 
  Professional Service (101-0031-5230)    $ 9,000 
  
SECTION 2.  That previously approved appropriation in the General Fund 

is hereby reduced by the amounts listed in the following accounts: 
 
Finance Department 
  Wages   (240-2410-5100)           ($ 7,800) 
  OPERS   (240-2410-5101)           ($ 1,100) 
  Medicare   (240-2410-5103)           ($    100) 
 
SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 



 SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, 
safety, health and welfare of the City and for the further reason to provide for 
the timely provision of staffing options in the Finance Department, and as such 
will be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO:  23  DATE: 11/12/2018 

ORDINANCE NO: 18-105 RESOLUTION NO: 

READING: FIRST  PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST 
BY MAKAPA LLC., FOR BELLE COMMONS FOR FOUR SINGLE FAMILY LOTS 
ON APPROXIMATELY 1.344 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-3 (ONE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BELLE 
AVENUE AND ON THE EAST SIDE OF LIBERTY ROAD.  

BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations of the 
zoning code. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on November 7, 2018. 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 

POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 
Letters from Public



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-105 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY 
SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY MAKAPA LLC., FOR 
BELLE COMMONS FOR FOUR SINGLE FAMILY LOTS 
ON APPROXIMATELY 1.344 ACRES ON PROPERTY 
ZONED R-3 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) 
AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BELLE 
AVENUE AND ON THE EAST SIDE OF LIBERTY ROAD.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 7, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Subdivision Plat by Makapa LLC., for 
Belle Commons for four single family lots on approximately 1.344 acres on 
property zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the north side 
of Belle Avenue and on the east side of Liberty Road (PC Case 2018-1968). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Subdivision Plat by Makapa LLC., for 
Belle Commons for four single family lots on approximately 1.344 acres on 
property zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the north side 
of Belle Avenue and the east side of Liberty Road is hereby confirmed, approved, 
and accepted with on the following conditions that: 
 

1. The engineering drawing shall be approved by the City Engineer prior to 
approval of any building permit. 

2. A sidewalk shall be required for each single family lot prior to final 
occupancy permit of the subject single family house. 

3. The single family houses shall achieve compliance with the R-3 zoning 
requirements in Chapter 1134 Residential District Requirements. 

4. The single family houses shall achieve compliance with Chapter 1171.08 
Residential Development Design Criteria and Performance Standards. 

5. Street trees shall be required for each single family house per the City 
requirements. 

6. Each house and lot shall achieve compliance with all other City 
development requirements. 

7. Any tree 6 inches or larger removed during the construction of the 
house(s) shall be replaced per Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation 
Regulations. 
 



SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO:  24  DATE: 11/12/2018 

ORDINANCE NO: 18-106 RESOLUTION NO: 

READING: FIRST  PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY 
MAKAPA LLC., FOR BELLE COMMONS FOR FOUR SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 1.344 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-3 (ONE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BELLE 
AVENUE AND ON THE EAST SIDE OF LIBERTY ROAD.  

BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations of the 
zoning code. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on November 7, 2018. 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 

POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 
Letters from Public



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-106 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT REQUEST BY MAKAPA LLC., FOR BELLE 
COMMONS FOR FOUR SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 1.344 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
R-3 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BELLE AVENUE 
AND ON THE EAST SIDE OF LIBERTY ROAD.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 7, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat by Makapa LLC., for Belle 
Commons for four single family lots on approximately 1.344 acres on property 
zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the north side of Belle 
Avenue and on the east side of Liberty Road (PC Case 2018-1969).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Subdivision Plat by Makapa LLC., for Belle 
Commons for four single family lots on approximately 1.344 acres on property 
zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the north side of Belle 
Avenue and the east side of Liberty Road, Is hereby confirmed, approved, and 
accepted with on the following conditions that: 
 

1. The engineering drawing shall be approved by the City Engineer prior to 
approval of any building permit. 

2. A sidewalk shall be required for each single family lot prior to final 
occupancy permit of the subject single family house. 

3. The single family houses shall achieve compliance with the R-3 zoning 
requirements in Chapter 1134 Residential District Requirements. 

4. The single family houses shall achieve compliance with Chapter 1171.08 
Residential Development Design Criteria and Performance Standards. 

5. Street trees shall be required for each single family house per the City 
requirements. 

6. Each house and lot shall achieve compliance with all other City 
development requirements. 

7. Any tree 6 inches or larger removed during the construction of the 
house(s) shall be replaced per Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation 
Regulations. 
 



SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





























BELLE COMMONS 
 

PUBLIC 
COMMENT  

& 
 LETTERS 







  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  25    DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-107   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL 
OF A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR AN ACTIVELY OWNED AND 
MANAGED 40 DWELLING UNIT LOW AND MODERATE INCOME 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE DRIVE ON APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRES ON 
PROPERTY ZONED PO/I PMU (PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT 
WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.05 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on November 7, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 18-107 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING 
CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF A FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR AN ACTIVELY OWNED 
AND MANAGED 40 DWELLING UNIT LOW AND 
MODERATE INCOME AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
DEVELOPMENT AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE DRIVE ON 
APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
PO/I PMU (PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT). 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 7, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Development Plan for an actively owned and 
managed 40 dwelling unit low and moderate income affordable housing 
development at 250 Curtis Street on the north side of Firestone Drive on 
approximately 3.64 acres on property zoned PO/I PMU (Planned 
Office/Institutional District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) (2018-
2673) and 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Final Development Plan for an actively owned and 
managed 40 dwelling unit low and moderate income affordable housing 
development at 250 Curtis Street on the north side of Firestone Drive on 
approximately 3.64 acres on property zoned PO/I PMU (Planned 
Office/Institutional District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District), is 
hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. The applicant shall contribute $40,000 for the proposed Curtis Street 
north bound left hand turn lane onto Firestone Drive along with 
dedicating the appropriate amount of right-of-way per the City 
Engineer. 



3. A guardrail or equivalent as approved by the City Engineer shall be 
installed along Firestone Drive adjacent to the proposed retention 
pond. 

4. The dumpster shall be enclosed by brick or stone that matches the 
building with wood doors painted or stained to match. 

5. The proposed apartment buildings shall achieve compliance with the 
subject submittal and the design standards of the approved 
development text.  

6. The exterior colors for siding and trim colors shall be natural earth 
tones and/or warm neutral colors including white with no high 
chroma colors permitted 

7. A tree preservation area shall be located on the western 150 feet of the 
property within an easement with the appropriate language that 
would need to be reviewed and approved by staff and then shall be 
recorded at the county by the applicant.  

8. The existing tree line along the northern property line shall be 
preserved as much as possible. 

9. Any street trees damaged by construction shall be replaced. 
10. Any landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade 

Tree Commission. 
11. A lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 

Official. 
12. Any signage shall be documented on the Final Development Plan and 

achieve compliance with the adopted Gateways and Corridor Plan. 
13. The entire development would have to achieve compliance with the 

minimum engineering, public works and fire department 
requirements.  

14. A lot split shall be approved administratively for Phase 2 (Building E) 
of the development per the approved Final Development Plan. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  



     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 















































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  26    DATE: 11/12/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-108   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR REALCO ENTERPRISES LLC., APPROVING A FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR RAISING CANE’S ENCOMPASSING 
APPROXIMATELY 1.485 ACRES AT 720 SUNBURY ROAD (US 36/37) ON 
PROPERTY ZONED B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan   
requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on November 7, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-108 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR REALCO ENTERPRISES LLC., 
APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
RAISING CANE’S ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 
1.485 ACRES AT 720 SUNBURY ROAD (US 36/37) ON 
PROPERTY ZONED B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT).  
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on November 7, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Development Plan for RealCo Enterprises LLC., 
for Raising Cane’s encompassing approximately 1.485 acres at 720 Sunbury Road 
(US 36/37) on property zoned B-3 PMU (Community Business District with a 
Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) (PC Case 2018-2612).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Development Plan for RealCo Enterprises LLC., 
for Raising Cane’s encompassing approximately 1.485 acres at 720 Sunbury Road 
(US 36/37) on property zoned B-3 PMU (Community Business District with a 
Planned Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted 
with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 
water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a complete 
plan set is submitted for review. 

2. The applicant shall show on their plans and record a cross access 
agreement adjacent to at least one east/west drive aisle to the out parcel to 
the east for internal access. Should the property to the east develop, the 
owner of the out parcel to the east shall be required to utilize and perform 
any required improvements to complete access to the subject out parcel.    

3. The limestone on the building shall be Delaware blue vein limestone or 
equivalent as approved by City Staff.  

4. All building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to 
match the adjacent building color. 

5. All roof top mechanical equipment shall be screened by a parapet wall or 
approved screening device. 



6. The Applicant shall submit all building elevations along with material and 
color samples for all building materials for staff review and approval.  

7. The wall signage on the east elevation shall not be permitted. 
8. Shrubs a minimum 3 foot high at installation shall be located adjacent to 

the parking lot along the southern portion of the site along the shopping 
center access road. 

9. The lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 
Official and all lighting must meet the requirements of the approved 
development text and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

10. The light fixtures shall be decorative that matches the other out buildings 
in the Glenwood Commons Shopping Center. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





























































City Manager Report 20181112 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE:  November 8, 2018 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
  
 October 16 
 * Strand Board Meeting 
 October 22 
 * Rotary 
 * Council Meeting 
 October 24 
 * CIC Meeting with County  
 October 25 
 * OCMA Board Meeting 
 * Evening of Generosity 
 October 29 
 * OWU Environmental Policy Class 
 * Rotary 
 October 31 
 * Firefighter Swearing In Ceremony 
 November 2 
 * Thanksgiving Luncheon  
 November 5 
 * Rotary 
 * Work Session 
  
  



November 
 

 

2018 
Meeting Schedule Council, Boards, Commissions, & Committees 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
    1 2 3 

       

4 5 6                                      7 8 9 10 
 Council Work Session 

6:30 pm 
Public Works/Public 
Utilities- canceled 

Planning Commission 7 
pm 

   

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
 Council 7pm  BZA 7pm    

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
  Parks & Rec 7pm- 

Canceled 
 Thanksgiving 

City Offices Closed 
City Offices Closed  

25 26 27 28 29 30 **December 1 
Budget Work Session 

 Council 7pm Shade Tree Commission 
7pm 

HPC 7pm  Main Street Delaware 
Tree Lighting 

 

       
       



December 
 

 

2018 
Meeting Schedule Council, Boards, Commissions, & Committees 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
      1 

      Budget Work Session 9 
am - noon 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
 Budget Work Session 

6:30 p.m. 
 Planning Commission 

7pm 
Budget Work Session 
6:30 p.m. if necessary 

  

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
 City Council Meeting 

7pm 
 BZA 7pm    

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
 Parking and Safety 

Committee 6pm 
 HPC 7pm  Year End City Council 

Meeting 7 pm 
  

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
  City Offices Closed 

Shade Tree 
Commission-Cancelled 

    

3030 31      
       

 



CONTRACT APPROVAL – November 12, 2018 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2018 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
Affidavit Maker Software LLC Agreement for use of Affidavit Maker 

Software between City of Delaware 
Police and Affidavit Maker Software LLC 

$1,930 Police 
 

The Righter Company, Inc. West Central Bikeway change order due 
to field conditions 

$332,512.27 Public Works 

Franklin University FranklinWORKS-Preferred Partner 
Agreement Addendum 

$0 DAS 

Contract Sweeper Co. 2018 Street Sweeping Program $42,900.00 Public Works 
Burgess & Niple Pollock Road Waterline Extension $74,950 Public Utilities 
Kemba Financial Credit Union Subordination Agreement for V&P 

Hydraulics RLF loan 
$0 ED 

OE Meyer Co. Cylinder Production Agreement- 
modified due to the City strike out that 
was signed on 4/15/18 

No Change  Fire 

Burgess & Niple Stratford Road Culvert, Velocity 
Dissipation Improvements, and 
Construction Contract Administration 

$19,950.00 Public Utilities 

 


	01 20181112 council agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20181022 council minutes and work session
	03 20181017 planning minutes
	04 20181003 Civil Service minutes
	05 201808238 shade tree minutes
	06 20180719 airport
	07 fact sheet res 18 -60,  Boardman Art Park parking restriction
	08 Res 18 - 60,  Boardman Art Park parking restriction
	RESOLUTION NO. 18-60

	09 Boardman Art Park access gate parking restriction request
	10 fact sheet res 18 -61,   Ceremonial Rifle Agreement
	11 res 18-61,  Ceremonial Rifle Agreement
	12 Ceremonial Rifle Agreement
	13 Fact Sheet Res 18-62, T-Hanger A, B & C Pavement Reconstruction
	14 Resolution 18-62, T-Hanger A, B & C Pavement
	15 Airport T-Hanger Pavement Rehab 9.17.18
	Purpose
	Financing
	Status

	16 fact sheet ord 18-89 water surcharge ~Draft update
	17 Sewer surcharge draft ordinance (3) (2)
	18 fact sheet ORD 18-90 approving Terra Alta NCA
	19 fact sheet ORD 18-90 approving Terra Alta NCA (2)
	20 New Community Authority Guideline Draft REVISED
	21ord 18-77, terra alta nca petition
	22 factsheet ord 18-91, 2018-2385 Camp Lazarus  REZ
	23 ord 18-91, 2018-2385 Camp Lazarus REZ
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-91
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	24 factsheet ord 18-92  , 2018-2387 Camp Lazarus  CUP
	25 ord 18-92, 2018-2387 Camp Lazarus CUP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-92
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	26 factsheet ord 18-93, 2018-2386 Camp Lazarus  PDP
	27 ord 18-93 , 2018-2386 Camp Lazarus PDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-93
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	28 2018 2358-2387 Boy Scouts of America
	29 fact sheet ord 18-94, 2018-2459 Belmont Place REZ
	30 ord 18-94 , rezone 2018-2459 Belmont Place West
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-94
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	31 fact sheet ord 18-95 , 2018-2460 Belmont Place PDP
	32 ord 18-95, 2018-2460 Belmont Place PDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-95
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	33 fact sheet ord 18-96 , 2018-2461 Belmont Place PSP
	34 ord 18-96 , 2018-2461 Belmont Place PSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-96
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	35  2018-2459-2461 Belmont Place West
	20181012135757989.pdf
	20181012135826552.pdf

	36 Fact Sheet ord 18-97 , 2018-2493 River Street Business Park FDP
	37 ord 18-97, 2018-2493 River Street Business Park FDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-97
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	38 fact sheet ord 18-98 , 2018-2494 River Street Business Park SVAC
	39 ord 18-98, 2018-2494 River Street Business Park SVAC
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-98
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	40 2018-2493-2494 river street staff report
	41 factsheet ord 18-99, 2018-2462 The Weselyan Inn  CUP
	42 ord 18-99, 2018-2462- The Wesleyan Inn CUP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-99
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	43 factsheet ord 18-100, 2018-2463 The Weselyan Inn  PDP
	44 ord 18-100 , 2018-2463- The Wesleyan Inn PDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-100
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	45  2018 2462-2463 Wesleyan Inn
	46 Fact Sheet Ord 18-102, Supplemental 23 & Glenn Pkwy
	47 Ordinance 18-102,  Supplemental 23 & Glenn Pkwy
	48 Fact Sheet Ord 18- appropriation finance professional services
	49 ord 18-104  , appropriation Finance Professional Services
	50 Fact Sheet ord 18-105 , 2018-1968 Belle Commons PSP
	51 ord 18-105 , 2018-1968 Belle Commons PSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-105
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	52 Fact Sheet ord 18-106 , 2018-1969 Belle Commons FSP
	53 ord 18-106 , 2018-1969 Belle Commons FSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-106
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	54 2018-1968 makapa belle commons staff report
	55 factsheet ord 18-107, 2018-2673 Delmor Dwelliing  FDP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR AN ACTIVELY OWNED AND MANAGED 40 DWELLING UNIT LOW AND MODERATE INCOME AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE DRIVE ...

	56 ord 18-107 , 2018-2673 Del-Mor Dwelling FDP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR AN ACTIVELY OWNED AND MANAGED 40 DWELLING UNIT LOW AND MODERATE INCOME AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE DRIVE ...

	57 2018-2673-delmor dwellings staff report
	58 Fact Sheet ord 18-108 , 2018-2612 Raising Canes FDP
	59 ord 18-108 , 2018-2612 Raising Cane's FDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-108
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	60 2018-2612 realco raising canes staff report
	61 city managers report 20181112
	62 nov
	63 Dec Calendar 2018
	64 contract approval 20181112
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – November 12, 2018
	2018
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	$1,930
	Affidavit Maker Software LLC
	Agreement for use of Affidavit Maker Software between City of Delaware Police and Affidavit Maker Software LLC

	$332,512.27
	The Righter Company, Inc.
	West Central Bikeway change order due to field conditions

	$0
	Franklin University
	FranklinWORKS-Preferred Partner Agreement Addendum

	$42,900.00
	Contract Sweeper Co.
	2018 Street Sweeping Program

	$74,950
	Burgess & Niple
	Pollock Road Waterline Extension

	$0
	Kemba Financial Credit Union
	Subordination Agreement for V&P Hydraulics RLF loan

	No Change 
	OE Meyer Co.
	Cylinder Production Agreement- modified due to the City strike out that was signed on 4/15/18

	$19,950.00
	Burgess & Niple
	Stratford Road Culvert, Velocity Dissipation Improvements, and Construction Contract Administration



